
1

Democratic Services
White Cliffs Business Park
Dover
Kent  CT16 3PJ

Telephone: (01304) 821199
Fax: (01304) 872453
DX: 6312
Minicom: (01304) 820115
Website: www.dover.gov.uk
e-mail: democraticservices

@dover.gov.uk

24 July 2017

Dear Councillor

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT a meeting of the SCRUTINY (COMMUNITY AND 
REGENERATION) COMMITTEE will be held in the Council Chamber at these Offices on 
Tuesday 1 August 2017 at 6.30 pm when the following business will be transacted. 

Members of the public who require further information are asked to contact Rebecca Brough 
on (01304) 872304 or by e-mail at rebecca.brough@dover.gov.uk.

Yours sincerely

Chief Executive 

Scrutiny (Community and Regeneration) Committee Membership:

L A Keen (Chairman)
G Cowan (Vice-Chairman)
P J Hawkins
T A Bond
P I Carter
N Dixon
R J Frost
M J Ovenden
G Rapley
N A G Richards

AGENDA

1   APOLOGIES  

To receive any apologies for absence.
 

2   APPOINTMENT OF SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS  

To note appointments of Substitute Members.
 

Public Document Pack



2

3   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  (Page 3)

To receive any declarations of interest from Members in respect of business to be 
transacted on the agenda. 
 

4   EMERGENCY TRANSFER OF ACUTE MEDICINE - KENT & CANTERBURY 
HOSPITAL  (Pages 4 - 7)

To receive a verbal report from Liz Shutler, Director of Strategic Development and 
Capital Planning.
 

Access to Meetings and Information

 Members of the public are welcome to attend meetings of the Council, its 
Committees and Sub-Committees.  You may remain present throughout them except 
during the consideration of exempt or confidential information.

 All meetings are held at the Council Offices, Whitfield unless otherwise indicated on 
the front page of the agenda.  There is disabled access via the Council Chamber 
entrance and a disabled toilet is available in the foyer.  In addition, there is a PA 
system and hearing loop within the Council Chamber.

 Agenda papers are published five clear working days before the meeting.  
Alternatively, a limited supply of agendas will be available at the meeting, free of 
charge, and all agendas, reports and minutes can be viewed and downloaded from 
our website www.dover.gov.uk.  Minutes are normally published within five working 
days of each meeting.  All agenda papers and minutes are available for public 
inspection for a period of six years from the date of the meeting.  

 If you require any further information about the contents of this agenda or your right 
to gain access to information held by the Council please contact Rebecca Brough, 
Team Leader - Democratic Support, telephone: (01304) 872304 or email: 
rebecca.brough@dover.gov.uk for details.

Large print copies of this agenda can be supplied on request.



Declarations of Interest

Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (DPI)

Where a Member has a new or registered DPI in a matter under consideration they must 

disclose that they have an interest and, unless the Monitoring Officer has agreed in advance 

that the DPI is a 'Sensitive Interest', explain the nature of that interest at the meeting. The 

Member must withdraw from the meeting at the commencement of the consideration of any 

matter in which they have declared a DPI and must not participate in any discussion of, or 

vote taken on, the matter unless they have been granted a dispensation permitting them to 

do so. If during the consideration of any item a Member becomes aware that they have a 

DPI in the matter they should declare the interest immediately and, subject to any 

dispensations, withdraw from the meeting.

Other Significant Interest (OSI)

Where a Member is declaring an OSI they must also disclose the interest and explain the 

nature of the interest at the meeting. The Member must withdraw from the meeting at the 

commencement of the consideration of any matter in which they have declared a OSI and 

must not participate in any discussion of, or vote taken on, the matter unless they have been 

granted a dispensation to do so or the meeting is one at which members of the public are 

permitted to speak for the purpose of making representations, answering questions or giving 

evidence relating to the matter. In the latter case, the Member may only participate on the 

same basis as a member of the public and cannot participate in any discussion of, or vote 

taken on, the matter and must withdraw from the meeting in accordance with the Council's 

procedure rules.

Voluntary Announcement of Other Interests (VAOI)

Where a Member does not have either a DPI or OSI but is of the opinion that for 

transparency reasons alone s/he should make an announcement in respect of a matter 

under consideration, they can make a VAOI. A Member declaring a VAOI may still remain at 

the meeting and vote on the matter under consideration.

Note to the Code: 

Situations in which a Member may wish to make a VAOI include membership of outside 

bodies that have made representations on agenda items; where a Member knows a person 

involved, but does not have a close association with that person; or where an item would 

affect the well-being of a Member, relative, close associate, employer, etc. but not his/her 

financial position. It should be emphasised that an effect on the financial position of a 

Member, relative, close associate, employer, etc OR an application made by a Member, 

relative, close associate, employer, etc would both probably constitute either an OSI or in 

some cases a DPI.

3

Agenda Item No 3



 

Emergency Transfer of acute medicine - Kent & Canterbury Hospital 

1. Background 

1.1 East Kent Hospitals announced on 21 March that Health Education England (HEE), which 
oversees junior doctor training, required the Trust to move half (38) of the junior doctors at the 
Kent & Canterbury Hospital (K&C) to the Trust’s other two hospitals at Ashford and Margate. 

1.2 This is because a shortage of permanent consultants and a heavy reliance on locum doctors 
has impacted on the supervision and training for junior doctors. As a teaching Trust, EKHUFT 
has to make sure that junior doctors have access to senior doctors to support them.  

1.3 The Trust has struggled to recruit and retain permanent consultants and has been briefing the 
Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee on these pressures for the last 18 months. There 
has also recently been some unexpected long-term sickness, maternity leave and 
resignations due to career changes. This is compounded by is also a national shortage of 
consultants and very demanding, and therefore unattractive, rotas caused by stretching 
services and resources across three sites.  

1.4 As a result on 19 June 2017 half of the junior doctors were moved from K&C to the William 
Harvey Hospital (WHH) in Ashford and the Queen Elizabeth The Queen Mother Hospital 
(QEQMH) in Margate. 

1.5 There has not been a full A&E at K&C since 2005 when services at the Trust were 
reconfigured. The A&E then became an emergency care centre which dealt with minor 
injuries and minor illnesses and also accepted some other emergency cases, but not general 
surgical emergencies. 

 
1.6 The Emergency Care Centre became the Urgent Care Centre in July 2016 when patients 

attending the K&C were ‘streamed’, to see a GP for minor illness, a nurse for minor injuries 
and the hospital team via an Acute Medical Unit if the patient’s complaint was more serious. 

 
1.7 These changes resulted in improved provision for junior doctors. However, the current 

difficulty in recruiting substantive consultants led to concerns by HEE and the General 
Medical Council (GMC) and their decision to remove the junior doctors on 19 June. 

 
2. Prioritising patient safety 

2.1 On Friday, 9 June, the Trust’s Board made the decision to move some services at K&C to its 
other two sites. This is because without the junior doctors the Trust could not continue to 
provide those services safely. This is called an emergency transfer of services. It can only be 
made on a temporary basis and does not require public consultation because it is an 
emergency move made to ensure services and patients are safe. 

2.2 Ambulance travel times from the K&C are 28 minutes to WHH and 38 minutes to QEQMH. 
National best practice and evidence shows that treatment by paramedics in the ambulance 
and specialists highly trained to treat your condition and available 24/7 when you get to 
hospital, has a greater impact on the outcomes for patients than shorter travel times. 

 
2.3 This is why the Trust has for some time taken many patients with complex trauma and heart 

attacks straight to the WHH in Ashford; and patients with emergency vascular conditions, 
such as an aortic aneurysm to the K&C, because that is where the experts are and where 
patients will have the best chance of survival and recovery. 

4

Agenda Item No 4



 

2.4 The Trust has a strong safety record and has made these changes so it can continue to 
ensure it provides safe services for patients, as well as appropriate training and supervision of 
junior doctors. In December 2016 the Care Quality Commission reported significant 
improvements in the quality of care and leadership at the Trust and it was removed from 
quality special measures in February 2017. The Trust has one of the lowest mortality rates 
and the best outcomes for trauma patients in the country. 

3. What this means for patients 

3.1 The changes affect people who require urgent medical care for conditions such as heart 
attack, stroke and pneumonia. As part of the temporary changes hyper acute stroke services 
were moved on 10 April 2017. Patients are no longer brought to the K&C Urgent Care Centre 
by ambulance as an emergency. They are now taken by ambulance straight to Margate or 
Ashford. 

3.2 The majority of services at the K&C are not affected. For example, surgical services, 
chemotherapy services, renal, vascular, urology services and outpatient clinics are not 
affected. There continues to be a 24/7 minor injury and illness service at the hospital. 

 
3.3 Patients who have a planned operation or outpatient appointment, an x-ray, blood test or 

therapy session at the K&C, are not affected and are seen and treated at K&C as usual. 
 
3.4 Most stroke services remain unchanged at the K&C, including outpatient appointments and 

rehabilitation services. The hospital’s stroke ward remains open and continues to care for 
patients recovering from a stroke. 

 
3.5 The Trust has ensured that as many patients as possible can still be cared for in Canterbury. 

In all, the temporary changes affect up to 50 of the 900 people who attend the hospital each 
day. Around 35 patients a day will no longer be brought to the K&C’s Urgent Care Centre. 

 
3.6 The ambulance service has reported that the road works on Kennington Road, expected to 

last until 5 September, have not unduly affected its service. We have also opened a rear 
access to the William Harvey Hospital for ambulances and staff, to assist other traffic flow for 

relatives. Road works are a regular occurrence on Kent roads and these have been planned 

for in the same way.  
 
4. Actions to create capacity at Margate and Ashford 

4.1 The Trust has been planning carefully and working closely with the ambulance service and 
other parts of the NHS and social care, with oversight from its regulators, to ensure the 
temporary transfer is safe and effective. 

4.2 Measures to ensure that there is sufficient capacity at the other two sites include: 

• providing more capacity in community care settings for people who are well enough to 
leave hospital but are not yet able to return home  

• improving patient pathways and increasing consultant cover (available through fewer 
rotas) improving patients’ discharge within the hospitals so they are not waiting longer 
than they need to leave hospital 

• increasing the amount of “ambulatory” care so more patients who need urgent treatment 
can be treated on the day they come in, and go home the same day 

• additional ambulance capacity and patient transport vehicles 

• extending 7 day services to therapies, pharmacy and cardiac catheterization laboratories 

5



 

4.3 Once patients are well enough, we aim to discharge them home or to a nursing or residential 
care facility. If patients are medically fit to leave our hospitals in Margate or Ashford but need 
to remain in hospital we may transfer them to the K&C to continue their rehabilitation. This 
decision would include an assessment of clinical need and where patients live. This will only 
happen if patients are well enough, and by using properly qualified staff and transport by 
ambulance. 

4.4 As a result of the emergency transfer, 24 beds at K&C are not currently needed and have 
closed. At WHH eight inpatient beds have been changed from inpatient to ambulatory care 
beds, at QEQM 7 beds have been changed from inpatient to ambulatory care beds. 

5. Stakeholder and patient communication 
 
5.1 On 21 March 2017 the Trust informed staff and patients and wrote to partners, stakeholders, 

HOSC members, Trust members and announced in the media, the decision by HEE that it 
was moving some junior doctors and therefore some services would be moving from K&C in 
two to three months on a temporary basis. Further communications were sent out on 10 April 
about the changes to hyper acute stroke services; and on 12 June following the Board’s 
decision and in advance of the remaining changes. 

 
5.2 The Trust has worked with Healthwatch Kent to develop patient information available for the 

Trust to use, and has also cascaded information via the community health learning disability 
teams, nursing homes, Age UK and the Stroke Association. 

 

5.3 The Trust understands and shares the public’s strength of feeling about the NHS. The Trust 
has and is taking up regular opportunities to engage with the public at listening events led by 
the clinical commissioning groups, at public meetings e.g. held by CHEK and Faversham 
Health Matters, as well as regular engagement with staff. 

 
5.4 During purdah the Trust was restricted in attending one public meeting but representatives 

took down all questions raised and these have been answered and are available on the 
Trust’s website. The Trust agreed with the campaign group running the public meeting on a 
date to reschedule the meeting and this took place with Trust doctors, the Chief Executive 
and NHS commissioners attending to answer questions on 16 June. 

 
5.5 The Trust regularly communicates and meets with local MPs, this has recently included the 

new member of parliament for Canterbury. 
 
6. Action to address the shortage of consultants 

6.1 The Trust can only reverse the changes when it has recruited sufficient substantive 
consultants to run the services and the General Medical Council and Health Education 
England are satisfied that it can provide appropriate supervision and training for medical 
trainees at K&C again. 

 
6.2 The Trust continues to actively recruit permanent consultant doctors including holding regular 

national and international recruitment campaigns, placing targeted adverts in publications 
such as the British Medical Journal, work with recruitment experts who specialise in recruiting 
doctors, and use targeted social media adverts. Posts are often advertised for consultants to 
work for the Trust rather than individual hospitals to increase the opportunity to attract 
applicants. 

6.2 A new website for the public sector has been launched in east Kent called Take a Different 
View specifically selling the advantages of relocating to east Kent. 

6



 

6.3 The Trust is also looking closely at how it can make the roles more attractive to consultants, 
for example, by reviewing our research opportunities, relocation incentives and working 
patterns. 

7. Improving healthcare in East Kent for the future  

7.1 This situation is an illustration of why there needs to be a move to a more sustainable way of 
providing hospital care which includes making the best use of the Trust’s three hospitals at 
Canterbury, Margate and Ashford, with greater additional support for people in their local 
communities. 

7.2 The longer-term vision is for a comprehensive reconfiguration of services to improve the 
quality and safety of care the Trust can offer and takes advantage of the advances in 
medicine which have resulted in better care, from specialist teams, leading to far better 
outcomes for patients, and meets the long-term needs of our changing population. 

7.3 The proposals include organising our services across our three existing hospital sites so that 
we have an emergency care hospital with A&E and specialist services, a second emergency 
care hospital with A&E and a third hospital with GP-led 24/7 urgent care, planned care and 
specialist intensive rehabilitation.  

7.4 This early thinking was informed by conversations with the public, staff and clinicians. We are 
now working with the public to develop more detailed proposals for the future of health and 
social care and options for which sites should provide which services. This will be consulted 
on as part of a public consultation led by the Clinical Commissioning Groups in East Kent, we 
hope that will be early in 2018. 

7.5 Our early thinking means providing acute medical services on two of our three hospital sites 
in the future. The temporary changes we are making now may still be in place when we reach 
public consultation on the STP. If this is the case, the Trust will focus on implementing any 
longer-term reconfiguration once the final decision is made on where and how services are 
provided. 

 
7.6 The Trust fully supports the bid for a medical school for Kent and Medway. The most 

important factors in attracting doctors are hospital services that deliver the best care, offer 
attractive services, manageable rotas and working conditions for staff. This is the Trust’s 
vision for its hospitals and having a Medical School locally will add to that attraction. 

 
7.7 Longer-term changes do not stop a new hospital being built in the future but, even if the 

funding was available now, it would take at least 10 years before it could be built. It is clear 
that it is not possible to sustain services as they are now without making changes and the 
benefits for patients of transforming care would not be realised. 

 
7.8 Canterbury and Coastal Clinical Commissioning Group has commissioned work to scale up 

the plans it has been developing to increase the amount of local care in the area through 
better co-ordination between primary care and community services. For example, there is 
work across the health and social care system to develop a frailty pathway so that more older 
people needing urgent care can be cared for at home or in a community bed, starting this 
autumn. 

 
3 July 2017 

 

7


	Agenda
	3 Declarations of Interest
	4 Emergency Transfer of Acute Medicine - Kent & Canterbury Hospital

